BELLEVUE PLANNING COMMISSION
Thursday, February 25, 2021 7:00 PM
Bellevue City Hall

1500 Wall Street

Bellevue, NE 68005

1. CALL TO ORDER:
a. Roll Call
b. The Open Meetings Act location
c. Approve Minutes of January 28, 2021 Regular Meeting
d. Accept into the record all staff reports, attachments, memos, and handouts regarding each
application.

2. CONSENT AGENDA/PUBLIC HEARINGS:

3. PUBLIC HEARINGS:
a. Request to rezone Tax Lots 6A1A and 9A4A1, east of right-of-way, located in the
Southwest V4 of Section 26, T14N, R13E of the 6th P.M., Sarpy County, NE, from BG to RG-
20 for the purpose of a residential group home facility. Applicant: i3, LLC. General Location:
601 Chateau Drive. Case #: Z-2012-17.

4. CURRENT BUSINESS
a. NPZA virtual conference March 12, 2021

5. ADJOURNMENT



MINUTE RECORD

Bellevue Planning Commission Meeting, January 28, 2021 Page 1

Pursuant to the Governor’s Executive Order 20-36, on Thursday January 28, 2021 at 7:00 p.m. the
Bellevue Planning Commission meeting was held via video conference. Upon roll call, present were
Commissioners Ritz, Casey, Cain, Aerni, Hankins, Cutsforth, Ackley, Perrin, and Jacobson. Also
present were Tammi Palm, Planning Manager, and Angela Curry, Assistant Planning Manager.

Notice of this meeting was given in advance thereof by publication in the Gretna Guide and posting in
two public places, and was given to the Chairperson and members prior to the meeting. These minutes
were written and available for public inspection within ten days of the meeting.

Ritz announced the Open Meetings Act pursuant to the Governor’s Executive Order 20-36, said
meeting may be held via videoconference, telephone conference, or by conferencing by other electronic
means. As such, said meeting will be a virtual meeting and the public may by calling our Community
Relations Department, be provided a link to attend the meeting via GoToMeeting. Said meeting, can
be viewed via Facebook Live by visiting the City of Bellevue Facebook page, but no public participation
will be allowed or considered via Facebook live.

MOTION was made by Hankins, seconded by Ackley, to approve the minutes of the December 17,
2020 reqular meeting as presented. Upon roll call, all voted yes. Motion carried unanimously.

Ritz asked if there were any updates or additions to staff reports. Palm stated two emails were received
and they were forwarded to the Planning Commissioners. She stated one email was from Mr.
Vanderhoff regarding Item 2.a. and one email from Mr. Kassebaum regarding ltem 3.c., these emails
will become part of the record.

MOTION was made by Jacobson, seconded by Cutsforth, to accept into the record all staff reports,
attachments, memos, and handouts as well as the updates presented regarding each application.
Upon roll call, all voted yes. Motion carried unanimously.

PUBLIC HEARING was held on a request to preliminary plat Lots 1 through 45, Spring Ridge Replat
2. being a replat of Lots 104 through 153, Spring Ridge; and final plat Lots 1 through 45, Spring Ridge
Replat 2: and approval of the First Amendment to the Spring Ridge Subdivision Agreement. Applicant:
Orchard Valley Inc. Location: 21st Street and Rose Lane Circle. Case #s: S-2012-27 and S-2012-

28.

Melvin Sudbeck, 14711 Industrial Road, Omaha, NE, spoke on behalf of Orchard Valley. Sudbeck
requested the item be tabled for two weeks. Palm stated the next Planning Commission meeting would
be February 25%. Sudbeck stated they would like to table the item to that date. Palm asked for a
motion to approve the item be tabled to the February 25" Planning Commission Meeting.

MOTION was made by Cutsforth, seconded by Casey, to recommend APPROVAL of a request to table
the request to preliminary plat Lots 1 through 45, Spring Ridge Replat 2, being a replat of Lots 104
through 153, Spring Ridge: and final plat Lots 1 through 45, Spring Ridge Replat 2; and approval of the
First Amendment to the Spring Ridge Subdivision Agreement. Applicant: Orchard Valley Inc. Location:
21st Street and Rose Lane Circle. Case #s: S-2012-27 and S-2012-28. Upon roll call, all voted yes.
MOTION carried unanimously.

This item will proceed to PLANNING COMMISSION for PUBLIC HEARING ON February 25, 2021.

PUBLIC HEARING was held on a request to rezone Lots 1 and 2, Figgyland Overlook, being a platting
of Tax Lot 11, located in the Southeast % of the Southwest % of Section 10, T13N, R13E, of the 6th
P.M.. Sarpy County, Nebraska, from AG to RS-120 for the purpose of residential development;
preliminary plat Lots 1 and 2, Figgyland Overlook; and final plat Lots 1 and 2, Figgyland Overlook.
Applicant: HBC Homes. Location: 2116 Fairview Road. Case #s: Z-2012-18, S-2012-29, and S-

2012-30.

Ritz asked staff for updates. Palm stated the request was to Preliminary Plat, Final Plat and rezone an
existing Tax Lot that is approximately 1.8 acres. She stated the current zoning is AG (Agricultural
District) which is a non-conforming lot because it does not meet the minimum requirement of the AG
zoning. Palm stated the lot would be split into two lots and the rezoning will bring the lots into
conformance with the Zoning Ordinance. Palm said the Preliminary Plat and Final Plat requests are
due to the applicant creating additional right-of-way for Fairview Road. Palm stated staff is
recommending approval of the application based on conformance with the Zoning Ordinance,
Subdivision Regulations, and Comprehensive Plan.




MINUTE RECORID

Bellevue Planning Commission Meeting, January 28, 2021 Page 2

No one spoke in favor of, or opposition to this request. Ritz closed the public hearing.

Ackley asked staff if there would be separate access on each lot or would it require an easement. Palm
stated currently there are two access points off Fairview Road, and they would both be maintained.

MOTION was made by Ackley, seconded by Jacobson, to recommend APPROVAL of a request to
rezone Lots 1 and 2, Figgyland Overlook, being a platting of Tax Lot 11, located in the Southeast V4 of
the Southwest ¥4 of Section 10, T13N, R13E, of the 6th P.M., Sarpy County, Nebraska, from AG to RS-
120 for the purpose of residential development; preliminary plat Lots 1 and 2, Figgyland Overlook: and
final plat Lots 1 and 2, Figgyland Overlook. Applicant: HBC Homes. Location: 2116 Fairview Road.
Case #'s: Z-2012-18, S-2012-29, and S-2012-30. APPROVAL based upon conformance with the
Zoning Ordinance, Subdivision Regulations, Comprehensive Plan, and lack of perceived negative
impact to the surrounding areas, Upon roll call all voted yes. MOTION carried unanimously.

This item will proceed to CITY COUNCIL for PUBLIC HEARING ON March 2, 2021.

PUBLIC HEARING was held on a request to amend section 5.28, City of Bellevue Zoning Ordinance,
regarding permitted uses in the MH (Heavy Manufacturing) zoning district to allow for concrete
recycling. Applicant: Douglas Earnest/Central Recycling, LLC. Case #: 161.

Ritz asked staff for updates. Palm stated the request by Scott Earnest is to amend Section 5.28 of the
Zoning Ordinance to add concrete recycling plant as a permitted use in the MH (Heavy Manufacturing)
zoning district. She stated the current regulation allows batch plants as a permitted use however, there
is no language for recycling of concrete, asphalt or paving materials. Palm said staff researched
neighboring jurisdictions and proposes language that is consistent with neighboring jurisdictions as well
as the current language in the zoning ordinance for batch plants. Palm stated the proposal would be
to add temporary recycling plants not to exceed 36 months of operation as a permitted use and
permanent recycling plants added as a conditional use. She said this falls in line with existing language
for batch plants. Palm stated currently the MH Zone allows temporary batch plants not to exceed 24
months of operation.

Scott Collins and Doug Earnest were present on behalf of Central Recycling, LLC, 11507 S. 42" Street,
Ste. 109, Bellevue, NE.

No one spoke in favor of, or opposition to this request. Ritz closed the public hearing.

Aerni asked the applicant why they were applying for temporary status rather than permanent. Collins
stated the company recycles concrete removed from sidewalks, city and county roads. He stated the
request for temporary status is because the equipment could be moved to different locations as needed.

Ritz asked what defined temporary versus permanent. Palm stated the time frame that the company
works in the location determines whether it is temporary or permanent. Palm said staff has
recommended temporary to be no longer than 36 months and permanent would be allowed as a
conditional use permit to have more oversight of the these types of projects.

Jacobson asked staff if the company moves to another location on the same property would that restart
the 36-month time limitation. Palm stated it would not, if they remain on the same property.

Ackley asked the applicant what the estimated height of the debris piles would be and how often would
the piles be turned. Collins stated they would be approximately fifteen to twenty feet high. Ackley
asked if there would be an issue if the commission restricted the height of the piles. Ackley stated
subsection 17 of the permitted uses has blocking requirements. Palm stated height limitations could
be part of the proposed language moving forward to the City Council.

Ackley asked if the applicant moves off site and leaves debris or piles on the site who is responsible
for the cleanup of that debris. Palm stated the landowner would be responsible for the cleanup of that
debris once the temporary recycling plant is gone.

Ritz stated to be consistent he would suggest following the language in 5.28.02, 17 of the Zoning
Ordinance. He suggested adding this language for permanent recycling plants since the language
requires obscuring an area from the street or from any adjacent property in another zone by installing
a site-obscuring fence. Palm stated this type of requirement could be added as needed with a
Conditional Use Permit application. She said a permanent recycling plant would be allowed as a
conditional use.



MINUTE RECORD

Bellevue Planning Commission Meeting, January 28, 2021 Page 3

Collins stated the piles on the existing batch plant off Highway 75 could be 40 to 50 feet high and there
are no restrictions on that plant.

Aerni asked staff if the application was for a permanent plant what conditions would be required for the
Conditional Use Permit. Palm stated conditions would be implemented on a case-by-case basis. She
said she did not see what could be accomplished with landscaping or fencing this type of use. She
said staff would be more concerned with location and surrounding land uses. Discussion ensued
regarding temporary and permanent recycling plants.

Ackley asked if there was a requirement on the amount of debris they could dump before recycling it
and hauling it off site. He said with a forty-acre site would there be twenty acres of debris before it
would be recycled and hauled away, or worse yet forty acres of debris and the company picks up and
leaves. Earnest stated the only way Central Recycling turns a profit is if they process the material and
sell it. He said they would also be doing some landscape materials for homeowners and landscape
contractors to purchase. Ackley asked if they would be grinding trees and limbs for mulch or would it
strictly be concrete, asphalt and paving materials. Earnest said strictly concrete, asphalt and paving
materials and the landscape materials would be boulders and rock.

Ritz stated the amendment would allow anyone to set up a temporary recycling plant on property in the
MH zoning. He asked staff if there was a height restriction on the facility at Highway 75 and Highway
370. Palm stated there are no height restrictions for batch plants. Ritz said he would recommend a 25
foot height restriction for temporary batch plant. Collins stated that was acceptable.

Ackley asked staff if they had concerns regarding pile heights or the amount of area for the recycling
plant. He stated forty acres seems like a potential eyesore if material is not recycled and moved right
away. Palm stated she did not have an issue with restricting the pile height. She stated limiting the
amount of land is far reaching and she would be more concerned with whether the property is properly
zoned. Palm stated she needed a recommendation that was easily enforceable and rock solid in court.

Jacobson stated a height limitation might be arbitrary and would appear to be customized for this
applicant. He said equipment on a site could be taller than the 25-foot height restriction Mr. Ackley is
proposing. He said he recommends using a broader scope that could be adapted to any applicant
applying for batch plants. Discussion ensued regarding safety and work methods of concrete recycling
plants.

Palm stated the request is for the MH Zoning district and the intent of the MH zone provides for the
widest range of industrial operations permitted in the city. Palm stated the MH zone includes permitted
uses such as Highway maintenance yards or buildings, which have no height limitations on stockpiles.
She said MH zone also allows for junk yards, auto parts salvage, auto wrecking yards, rendering plants
and several types of manufacturing. Palm said she would have more concerns if this were in a more
restrictive zone such as Flex or ML (Light Manufacturing). Ackley stated he would agree.

Aerni stated without knowing industry standards the 25 foot height limitation is arbitrary. Ritz stated he
agreed and withdrew his suggestion of the 25 foot height limitation.

Motion was made by Aerni, seconded by Cain, to recommend APPROVAL of a request to amend
section 5.28. City of Bellevue Zoning Ordinance, regarding permitted uses in the MH (Heavy
Manufacturing) zoning district to allow for concrete recycling and including proposed correction of
verbiage. Applicant: Douglas Earnest/Central Recycling, LLC. Case #: 161. Upon roll call all voted
ves. MOTION carried unanimously.

This item will proceed to CITY COUNCIL for PUBLIC HEARING ON March 2, 2021.

PUBLIC HEARING was held on a request to rezone Tax Lots 6A1A and 9A4A1, east of right-of-way,
located in the Southwest % of Section 26, T14N, R13E, from BG to RG-20 for the purpose of a
residential group home facility. Applicant: i3, LLC. General Location: 601 Chateau Drive. Case #:

Z-2012-17.

Ritz asked staff for updates. Palm stated she had received an email from Fisher Easterling on behalf
of i3, LLC requesting the item be continued to the February 25, 2021 Planning Commission Agenda.

Jerry Kassebaum, 2111 Harvell Dr., Bellevue, NE, stated he is co-owner of a martial arts school located
across the street from 601 Chateau Drive. He said the school caters to children and adults and he



MINUTE RIECORID

Bellevue Planning Commission Meeting, January 28, 2021 Page 4

fears parents would not want to drop off their children in an area across from a group home. He stated
surrounding properties are zoned business and he would be concerned with changing the zoning of
this property to residential. Kassebaum also expressed concern his property value would decrease
with this type of use in the area. Ritz stated Commissioners had received the letter from Master
Kassebaum and it was part of the record for this item

No one else spoke in favor of, or opposition to this request. Ritz closed the public hearing.

Aerni asked Kassebaum if an empty building would be more likely to hurt property values rather than a
group home business, which is taken care of and maintained. Kassebaum stated he thought the
building would eventually be sold due to a high demand for commercial property in the area. Aerni
stated his concern was the building was unique and it would take a unique business to purchase it and
work with the existing footprint.

Hankins asked staff if the sale of the property was contingent on the zoning. Palm stated typically that
is the case but the department does not get involved in that aspect of the case.

Ritz asked if the item is continued to the February meeting are notices sent out again. Palm stated if
the item is continued to a specific date new notices are not required.

MOTION was made by Cutsforth, seconded by Ackley, to recommend CONTINUANCE of a request to
rezone Tax Lots 6A1A and 9A4A1, east of right-of-way, located in the Southwest ¥ of Section 26,
T14N, R13E, from BG to RG-20 for the purpose of a residential group home facility to the February 25,
2021 Planning Commission Meeting. Applicant: i3, LLC. General Location: 601 Chateau Drive. Case
#: Z-2012-17. Applicant: Douglas Earnest/Central Recycling, LLC. Case #: 161. Upon roll call all
voted yes. MOTION carried unanimously.

This item will proceed to PLANNING COMMISSION for PUBLIC HEARING ON February 25, 2021.

PUBLIC HEARING was held on a request to approve the 2021 Comprehensive Plan Update. Applicant:
City of Bellevue. Case #: 162.

Ritz asked staff for updates. Palm stated the Comprehensive Plan was last updated in 2018 and is
typically updated every three years. She stated the updates presented represent information regarding
statistics and projects already completed. She stated most updates are to the Future Land Use Map
and the City’s short, long, and mid-term goals.

No one spoke in favor of, or opposition to this request. Ritz closed the public hearing.

Jacobson referred to page 3, and made note short term (1-5 Years) is silent to any development of
Galvin Road from Harlan Road to Mission Avenue. Jacobson suggests including reference of a line
item to establish a public/private partnership to implement the redevelopment plan of Galvin Road from
Harlan Road to Mission Avenue. He stated the city needs to avoid redevelopment of Mission Avenue,
Galvin Road and Fort Crook Road, at the same time. Jacobson recommended the city establish at
least a short-term plan to move forward.

Jacobson said the mention of incorporating maintenance for facilities into the Capital Improvement Plan
(CIP). He stated the Commissioners previously approved nine million dollars to redevelop the library.
Jacobson recommended redevelopment of the library should be included in the Short Term (1-5 Years)
and the execution of the nine million dollar expenditure. Cain stated the improvement of Lincoln Road
to Mission Avenue is listed in a later part of the plan. She asked Jacobson if he wanted the
redevelopment listed in the short-term objectives also. Jacobson said yes in the 1-5 year he would like
to establish a plan to execute the redevelopment in later years.

Cain stated when the city was bidding for the Space Command they were going to donate a number of
dollars to improve the South entrance to Offutt Air Force Base which is mentioned later in the plan but
should it also be mentioned in the short term objective. Jacobson stated he would agree to that and
possible wording should be to plan for the improvement in later years and make sure it is intergrated.
Palm stated she could combine both items. She said could add a statement in regards to a
redevelopment plan along the Galvin Road corridor leading to the Offutt Air Force Base Gate.

Ritz stated the Offutt gate is important but feels a higher priority is the intersection at Galvin Road and
Mission Avenue because it is very confusing and busy. Ritz stated he would want the projects split
because he feels the Offutt Gate would be a low priority. Palm stated reconfiguration of the entrance









	Agenda
	1. CALL TO ORDER:
	a. Roll Call
	b. The Open Meetings Act location
	c. Approve Minutes of January 28, 2021 Regular Meeting
	d. Accept into the record all staff reports, attachments, memos, and handouts regarding each application.

	2. CONSENT AGENDA/PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	3. PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	a. Request to rezone Tax Lots 6A1A and 9A4A1, east of right-of-way, located in the Southwest ¼ of Section 26, T14N, R13E of the 6th P.M., Sarpy County, NE, from BG to RG-20 for the purpose of a residential group home facility.  Applicant:  i3, LLC.  General Location:  601 Chateau Drive.  Case #:  Z-2012-17.

	4. CURRENT BUSINESS
	a. NPZA virtual conference March 12, 2021

	5. ADJOURNMENT
	32fea898-a6a6-4882-badd-d307c980d6f9

